2005

# Janice Ririe Kunz v. Richard L. Kunz : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

### A. Nature of the Case:

This appeal is from an Order of the Third District Court, Salt Lake Department, Honorable Sandra N. Peuler presiding, dismissing on summary judgment Janice Kunz's petition for judicial declaration of common law marriage, concluding that the decedent Richard Kunz was already legally married to a different party, Lynne Kunz, thereby precluding the possibility of finding a valid marriage between Janice and Richard.

### B. Course of the Proceedings and the Disposition Below:

On April 6, 2004, Janice Kunz (hereinafter "Janice") filed a verified petition for judicial declaration of common law marriage, seeking an Order declaring her the common law spouse of Richard Kunz ("Richard"), who passed away on July 9, 2003. Two parties were served with a copy of the petition, to wit: Lynne Kunz, an individual claiming to be the decedent's legal wife; and, Lillie Spencer, a purported "spiritual wife" of the decedent, who was never legally married to him.

Before Janice was able to serve the petition on the

decedent's personal representative, Lillie Spencer filed a motion for summary judgment or to dismiss on April 19, 2004. Acting in concert with Spencer, and using the same counsel, Lynne Kunz filed her own motion for summary judgment, reasserting the same arguments raised in Spencer's motion. After counsel for Janice filed an affidavit seeking an opportunity to engage in discovery, the matter was heard at oral argument on September 17, 2004. The domestic court commissioner then issued a recommendation, concluding that the matter would be treated as a motion for summary judgment and that the motion would be granted in favor of Lillie Spencer and Lynne Kunz (hereinafter sometimes collectively referred to as the "appellees").

Thereafter, on September 24, 2004, Janice timely filed an objection to the commissioner's recommendation, coupled with a request for oral argument. Appellees subsequently filed a response to Janice's objection on October 8, 2004, and later submitted an affidavit in support of attorney fees on November 8, 2004. Janice filed a motion to strike the attorney fee affidavit on November 9, 2004. Shortly thereafter, Judge Peuler issued an Order on November 16, 2004, upholding the commissioner's recommendation of summary

judgment dismissal and denying Janice's request for oral argument.

On March 3, 2005, a hearing was held before the domestic court commissioner on the issue of attorney fees. Following the hearing, the commissioner issued a recommendation denying attorney fees. Appellees objected to the recommendation, and the matter was therefore presented to Judge Peuler for a decision. On March 24, 2005, Judge Peuler entered an Order denying the objection and upholding the commissioner's recommendation. Janice then commenced the instant appeal on April 20, 2005. No prior or related appeals have been taken.

C. Statement of Facts:

1. Janice and Richard Kunz were married in the Salt Lake Temple on June 18, 1953. Previously, neither party had ever been married. (Verified Petition, ¶ 4 (Record at 2)).

2. Thereafter, the parties became followers of the doctrine of plural marriage, and in 1961 they divorced in order to allow Richard to marry another spouse, Rachel Kunz, in a civil ceremony. (R. at 2, ¶¶ 5-6.)

3. Despite Janice and Richard's divorce, the two

continued to reside together, hold property together, and otherwise acted as if they were married. (R. at 2, ¶¶ 6-7.)

4. Rachel Kunz subsequently passed away in approximately May of 1994. (R. at 2, ¶ 8.)

5. Thereafter, Janice and Richard continued to reside together as common law husband and wife. (R. at 2, ¶ 7.)

6. Sometime later, Richard took another spiritual wife, Lillie Spencer, but he did not legally marry her. (R. at 2, ¶ 9; Affidavit of Janice Kunz, ¶ 8 (R. at 22)).

7. On or about September 17, 1999, Richard purported to marry another individual, Lynne R. Kunz, in a secret civil ceremony, with a marriage license and certificate issued. (R. at 2, ¶ 10; R. at 22, ¶ 9; R. at 46.)

8. At the time of his marriage to Lynne, Richard was already common law married to Janice. (R. at 2, ¶ 11.)

9. The marriage to Lynne was done in utter secrecy, without Janice's knowledge. (Affidavit of Janice Kunz, ¶ 9 (R. at 22); Affidavit of Viroque Kunz, ¶¶ 3-4 (R. at 46)). It was done as a matter of expediency and as a favor to Lynne, to allow her--a British citizen--to remain in the country on an expiring visa. (R. at 35-36, ¶¶ 10-14; R. at 46, ¶¶ 3-4)). Lynne was already the plural wife of a

different husband, Andrew Williams, but she was unable to legally marry him because he had already taken a legal wife. (Affidavit of Debbie Darger, ¶¶ 11-12 (R. at 35-36); Affidavit of Viroque Kunz, ¶3-4 (R. at 46)).

10. Following their "civil union", Lynne did not cohabit with Richard, nor did the couple hold themselves out as husband and wife, nor did they hold property together, nor did they have children together. (Affidavit of Debbie Darger, ¶¶ 11-14 (R. at 35-36); Affidavit of Janice Kunz, ¶¶ 9-10 (R. at 22)).

11. By contrast, Janice and Richard continued to reside together, and held themselves out as husband and wife and acquired a general reputation in the community as married. This situation existed from June 18, 1953, through July 9, 2003, when Richard passed away. (Verified Petition, ¶¶ 12-14 (R. at 2-3); Affidavit of Janice Kunz, ¶¶ 6, 11-12 (R. at 22-23)).

12. Janice and Richard had two children together during their marriage. (Verified Petition, ¶ 15 (R. at 3)).

13. Janice and Richard held property together jointly during their marriage. (Affidavit of Janice Kunz, ¶¶ 6, 11-12 (R. at 22-23)).

14. On June 18, 2003, the date of Janice and Richard's 50th wedding anniversary, Lillie presented the couple with an anniversary card, congratulating them on their golden anniversary. The card reads in pertinent part: "Richard and Janice[,] God Bless You on Your Golden Anniversary." (Id., ¶ 13 (R. at 23)).

15. Richard died on July 9, 2003, at age 68. (Verified Petition, ¶ 2 (R. at 1)). Lynne attended his funeral, but not as his surviving widow. Instead, she attended the funeral with her real husband, Andrew Williams, along with Andrew's other wife, Teresa. The funeral log shows them signing in as follows: "Andrew, Lynne & Teresa Williams." (Attachment to Affidavit of William P. Morrison of 6/2/04 (R. at 71)).

16. At the grave site, Andrew Williams made some remarks about Richard, stating that he had done a lot for Andrew's family, his wives, and himself. Andrew made these comments with his wife Teresa on one arm, and his other wife Lynne on the other. (Affidavit of Viroque Kunz, ¶4 (R. at 46)).

17. Janice filed her verified petition for judicial declaration of common law marriage on April 6, 2004. (R.



at 1.) Service of process of the verified petition on Lynne was accomplished by way of service on Andrew Williams at a common address. (Affidavit of William P. Morrison of 2/2/04, ¶ 12 (R. at 67); Constable's Affidavit of Service, R. at 48)). Lynne has not contested the validity of such service. (See Court Docket, *passim*.)

#### **SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT**

Janice is the only party entitled to legal recognition of her marriage to Richard. From the date of the couple's legal union in the Salt Lake Temple in 1953, continuing for the next fifty years until the time of Richard's death in July of 2003, the parties resided together, held property together, had children together, and held themselves out and acquired a reputation in the community as husband and wife.

By contrast, the secret marriage of Richard and Lynne was nothing other than a sham. It was a marriage of expediency, nothing more. At no time did these two individuals ever reside together, have children together, hold property together, file taxes together, or hold themselves out as husband and wife and establish a reputation as such in the community. Rather, their union

was simply undertaken to allow Lynne to remain in the country on an expiring visa. This so-called marital union was a fraud when it was undertaken, and it remains a fraud to this date. There is no basis in law or fact to uphold the marriage, nor to afford it any legal recognition. This Court should therefore reverse the lower court's grant of summary judgment in favor of the appellees, and reinstate Janice's petition forthwith.

#### **ARGUMENT**

##### **I. THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN DISPOSING OF THIS CASE ON SUMMARY JUDGMENT**

This is not a case that should have been decided on summary judgment. The issues involved in this case are factually unique, and are believed to be matters of first impression. Such issues do not lend themselves well to summary disposition. On summary judgment, the law must be well settled in favor of the moving party, and the moving party must show the nonexistence of any genuine issues of material fact. Utah R. Civ. P. 56(c). In the instant case, the law is not well settled, and the fundamental issue in the case is sharply disputed, to wit: whether Lynne is the

surviving widow of the decedent, or whether such title properly belongs to Janice. In light of the foregoing, it was imprudent for the lower court to dispose of this case on summary judgment. As the following discussion will demonstrate, the lower court granted summary judgment in error, and this Court should therefore reverse the lower court's decision and remand this case for further proceedings.

**A. Two Critical Errors Were Committed Below,  
Each of Which Warrants Reversal**

It is submitted that the domestic court commissioner made two fundamental errors in granting summary judgment below, which errors were perpetuated by the lower court. First, the commissioner improperly weighed the evidence, choosing to disbelieve the claim made by Janice in her affidavit that she did not know of Lynne's marriage to Richard until after Richard had passed away. Second, the commissioner improperly concluded that Janice lacked the requisite evidence to show the invalidity of Lynne's marriage to Richard, while at the same time denying Janice the opportunity to obtain additional evidence through the

process of discovery. Both of these errors warrant reversal of the lower court's decision.

The first error shows that the lower court did not properly follow the law in entering summary judgment in favor of the appellees. On summary judgment, it is not the proper role of the court to weigh the evidence. Instead, the role of the court is to view the evidence in the light most favorable to the nonmoving party. Winegar v. Froerer Corp., 813 P.2d 104 (Utah 1991); Canfield v. Albertsons, Inc., 841 P.2d 1224, 1226 (Utah App. 1992). As stated by the United States Supreme Court: "**The evidence of the non-movant is to be believed and all justifiable inferences are to be drawn in his favor.**" Anderson v. American Liberty Lobby, Inc., 477 U.S. 242, 255 (U.S. 1986) (emphasis added).

In the instant case, the domestic court commissioner improperly weighed the evidence. Instead of believing Janice's evidence, which showed that Janice was unaware of the purported marriage between Richard and Lynne until after Richard's death (Affidavit of Janice Kunz, ¶ 9 (Record at 22)), the commissioner viewed this evidence skeptically. This is clear from two statements made by the commissioner during oral argument. The first statement is reported at

page 216 of the Record, wherein the following remark is made: "Then somewhere around 1999 we get Lynn and Richard. **Supposedly** Janice doesn't know about it. It's a secret marriage." (R. at 216 (Addendum C, at 28:19-20) (emphasis added)). The commissioner's use of the word "supposedly" shows marked skepticism on her part as to the truthfulness of Janice's affidavit.

The second indication of the commissioner's disbelief of Janice's evidence is found at pages 223 and 224 of the Record, wherein the the following exchange is reported:

THE COURT: [T]here were a few facts that I wanted to get clear. Janice didn't know about the marriage to Lynn, **supposedly**, until the log--the funeral log, if I recall. They never knew each other? They never knew each other--never met?

MR. MORRISON: I can't say for certainty whether that's true, but I don't--

THE COURT: She has resided with Richard every day, every moment?

MR. MORRISON: When you say "she" you mean--

THE COURT: Janice.

MR. MORRISON: --Janice.

THE COURT: Every day, every moment since really their marriage?

MR. MORRISON: Not totally correct because

he's also split part of his time with Lillie Spencer, so I don't want to mislead the Court on that.

THE COURT: Okay. So Lillie Spencer signed the marriage certificate with Lynn, and so how would he not--how would she not know? Did these--they never talk, Lillie and Janice never talk, and they wouldn't have mentioned this little certificate that has Lillie's name on it where he's spending half of his time?

(Record at 223-24 (copy attached hereto at Addendum C, at 31-32, LL 15-26, 1-12) (emphasis added)).

Here, we clearly see the commissioner weighing the evidence, and effectively disregarding the allegation made in Janice's affidavit that she knew nothing of the Lynne and Richard wedding until after Richard had died. Janice cited this improper weighing of the evidence in her objection to the commissioner's recommendation, but the lower court did nothing to rectify the matter. Instead, the lower court summarily affirmed the commissioner's grant of summary judgment without a hearing. This was improper, and warrants reversal in and of itself. See Webb v. McGhie Land Title Co., 549 F.2d 1358 (10th Cir. 1977) (summary judgment is a drastic action, not favored except in those rare instances where a trial on the merits would be fruitless); Brandt. v. Springville Banking Co., 353 P.2d 460 (Utah 1960) (stating

that because summary disposition denies litigants the benefits of a trial, courts are, and should be, reluctant to invoke the remedy); Jackson v. Dabney, 645 P.2d 613 (Utah 1982) (same).

The second fundamental error that was made below concerns the lower court's refusal to allow Janice to engage in any discovery. This is important, because the lower court made a ruling that cut against Janice with a double edged sword. The court ruled that Janice did not have sufficient evidence to support her claim that Lynne's marriage to Richard was a fraud, while at the same time barring Janice from obtaining additional evidence to support her claim through the process of discovery.

At oral argument, the domestic court commissioner hammered this matter home. She stated in her ruling: "Looking at all of the facts, the petitioner was married and then subsequently divorced from the decedent, Mr. Kunz, and she wants that declared now to be a common law marriage, which on its face I have to invalidate the certified copy of the marriage between Lynn and Richard in 1999. To do that there has to be clear and convincing evidence that that was fraud. I don't have--**that is a higher level. It is just**

under a criminal standard. I don't have that level. It doesn't rise to that level. I can't see that I shouldn't grant the summary judgment because on its face and the documents presented, the evidence presented is there is a valid marriage." (Record at 228 (Addendum C, at 36:11-22) (emphasis added)).

Janice timely submitted an objection to the commissioner's recommendation, asserting in part that discovery should be allowed before a ruling was entered on the summary judgment motion. How else could Janice hope to prove, by the commissioner's standard, that a fraud occurred by "clear and convincing evidence"? Yet the lower court overruled Janice's objection and upheld the commissioner's recommendation, concluding that further discovery was unnecessary. (Order of November 16, 2004, at 1 (Record at 272)). This was clear error.

Under Utah law, it is generally not appropriate for a court to rule on a pending summary judgment motion until after the deadline for discovery cutoff has passed, because information may be learned through discovery sufficient to defeat the motion. Such was the holding in Auerbach's, Inc. v. Kimball, 572 P.2d 376, 377 (Utah 1977) and Downtown



Athletic Club v. Horman, 740 P.2d 275 (Utah Ct. App.), cert. denied, 765 P.2d 1277 (Utah 1987). Notably, these cases was decided before the adoption of Rule 26 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. The rule of law laid down in these cases is even more apropos now, because Rule 26 strictly prohibits parties from engaging in any discovery until after the parties have held an attorney's planning meeting and have submitted a case management order, which does not occur until after an answer is filed. Utah R. Civ. P. 26(d).

In this case, counsel for Janice cited to the Horman decision and requested that no ruling on the pending summary judgment motion be made until after the parties had conducted discovery. In addition, counsel filed an affidavit requesting an opportunity to engage in discovery. Among other things, the subject affidavit stated that written discovery requests were needed, as well as several depositions. Counsel requested an opportunity to depose Lillie Spencer, Lynne Kunz, and Andrew Williams. Counsel also stated that discovery was particularly necessary on the validity of the solemnized marriage between the decedent and Lynne Kunz. Since this marriage was done in utmost secrecy, not much information was available about the same, thus

warranting the need for discovery. Further, counsel stated that discovery needed to be conducted on the issue of Lynne's marriage to Andrew Williams. Such matter was relevant because of its bearing on Janice's claim that Lynne's marriage to Richard was a sham, inasmuch as she was already married to someone else.

The domestic court commissioner refused to allow any discovery. Such ruling was upheld by the lower court, which concluded that "further discovery was unnecessary." (Order of 11/16/04; R. at 272.) This ruling was entered in error. It was simply not appropriate for the lower court to have resolved this matter on summary judgment, without affording Janice an opportunity to engage in any discovery. Such result is unsound and contrary to law. Not only is it contrary to the Horman case, but it is also contrary to the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. Where, as here, the court elects to treat a Rule 12(b)(6) motion as a motion for summary judgment, each party must as a matter of law be afforded an opportunity to present all material evidence to the court that is relevant to the motion. Rule 12 provides in pertinent part: "If, on a motion asserting the defense number (6) to dismiss for failure of the pleading to state a

claim upon which relief can be granted, matters outside the pleading are presented to and not excluded by the court, the motion shall be treated as one for summary judgment and disposed of as provided in Rule 56, and **all parties shall be given reasonable opportunity to present all material made pertinent to such a motion by Rule 56.**" Utah R. Civ. P. 12(b) (emphasis added).

The lower court's entry of summary judgment in favor of the appellees, without affording Janice the opportunity to engage in discovery and present all pertinent and relevant evidence to the court, runs afoul of the law and must be overturned. This Court should therefore reverse the lower court's decision, and remand this case for further proceedings.

**B. Janice's Petition Was Timely Filed within One Year of the Date on which Her Marriage to Richard Was Terminated**

There is no basis for concluding that Janice's petition was untimely filed. Under Utah law, petitions for judicial declaration of common law marriage must be commenced within one year of the date on which the marriage relationship terminated. Utah Code Ann. § 30-1-4.5(2). In the instant

case, Janice's marriage to Richard was terminated by his death in July of 2003. Her petition was filed in April of 2004, well within the one year limitation period. Therefore, her petition was timely filed.

Appellees' may attempt to claim that Lynne's solemnized marriage to Richard in September of 1999 ended Janice's common law marriage to him, thus rendering her petition untimely when it was filed in April of 2004. This argument, however, is unavailing, because Lynne fraudulently concealed her marriage to Richard. Under Utah law, it is well settled that acts of fraudulent concealment toll the statute of limitations. Hill v. Allred, 28 P.3d 1271, \_\_\_\_\_ (Utah 2001). In the instant case, Janice has asserted that Lynne's marriage to Richard was a fraud, which was concealed from the public. The evidence before this Court shows that such marriage was undertaken in utmost secrecy, and was done not to effectuate a valid marriage but to try to skirt immigration laws and allow Lynne to remain in the country on an expiring visa. The evidence further shows that Janice knew nothing of the Lynne and Richard marriage until after Richard had passed away. Under Utah law, these facts are sufficient to toll the statute of limitations, at least

until Janice discovered the fraud or, through the exercise of reasonable dilligence, should have discovered it.

Indeed, this is the law laid down by the Utah Supreme Court in Hill, a case in which appellees' counsel served as an attorney of record.

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