2005

Janice Ririe Kunz v. Richard L. Kunz : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

5. Divorcee’s appeal should be dismissed because:

(a) **Untimely attorney fee request did not extend time for appeal.** Widow and Plural wife’s request for attorney fees was denied because the fee request was not timely filed. Accordingly, the court lacked jurisdiction to consider their motion for attorney fees. Because the court lacked jurisdiction to consider the Widow and Plural

¹² See ¶ 1-5, R 172-176.

¹³ See URCP 56(e) requirements in footnote 12 below.

Wife's motion for attorney fees, that motion did not extend the time for filing the appeal and as a result the Court lacks jurisdiction over this appeal.

(b) **Statutory bar to Janice's petition.** Time limits imposed by UC § 30-1-4.5 [Add. "A" to App. brief] are an absolute statutory bar to Divorcee's petition seeking to have her relationship with Deceased Husband declared a common law marriage *over 2 ½ years after* Richard married Widow. See discussion in ¶ 12 below.

(c) **UC § 30-1-4.5 is a statute of repose.** As a statute of repose, UC § 30-1-4.5 limits the time and circumstances within which Divorcee could have filed a petition asking that her relationship with Deceased Husband be declared a common law marriage. Because it is a statute of repose, and not a statute of limitations, the statutory time limits therein are not subject to being extended by tolling. Because a statute of repose is not subject to tolling, Mr. Morrison's argument that if he were allowed discovery he might be able to prove that the Lynne-Richard marriage was fraudulent, is without merit. Even if Mr. Morrison were able to prove fraud, (no fraud existed) this would not extend the absolute time limited by the statute of repose.

(d) **Morrison's insufficient URCP 56(f) affidavit.** Even if the time limits imposed by UC § 30-1-4.5 could be tolled by fraud (no such tolling can occur), no evidence has been adduced which if proven would justify tolling. Morrison's URCP 56(f) Affidavit seeking discovery was grossly insufficient to meet the minimum requirements for such an affidavit. See discussion in ¶ 10 below.

(e) **Attorney fees for frivolous appeal.** Widow and Plural Wife should be awarded their attorney fees incurred in defending against this frivolous appeal. See discussion in ¶ 19 below.

RESPONSE TO “ARGUMENT”

I

SUMMARY JUDGMENT WAS PROPER

6. **Insufficient URCP 56(f) affidavit.** Although the facts may be unique, the applicable issues of law are well settled under Utah law. Utah Law was properly applied by the trial court to the undisputed facts. In his insufficient URCP 56(f) Affidavit, in an effort to avoid SJ [R 65-71].¹⁴ Morrison speculates that if Divorcee were afforded discovery she might be able to discovery some as yet unidentified disputed material issue of fact for trial The trial Court properly ruled¹⁵ that Morrison’s URCP 56(f) affidavit did not sufficiently identify evidence to be sought through discovery which would be sufficient (if proven) to defeat Widow and Plural Wife’s SJ.¹⁶ The Court

¹⁴

Citations to authorities and detailed discussions as to the reasons why Morrison’s Affidavit fails to comply with minimum URCP 56(f) requirements are found in R. 55, ¶ 14-15 and R. 139-140, ¶ 7-8. See detailed discussion re URCP 56(f) affidavits in *Sandy City v. Salt Lake County*, 794 P.2d 484 (Ut Ct. App 1990).

¹⁵ See Order dated 11/16/04. [App. 3].

¹⁶

Minimum standards for URCP 56(f) affidavit. At a minimum a URCP 56(f) Affidavit must: (a) describe the type of additional discovery needed, (b)

specifically held that “with respect to the legal matters at issue, further discovery is unnecessary.” [Add. “B” to Divorcee’s Brief]. Because there are no disputed *material* facts, Summary judgment was properly granted. *Alder v. Bayer Corp, AGFA Div.*, 63 P.3d 1068 (Utah 2002); *WebBank v. American General Annuity Service Corp.*, 54 P.3d 1139 (Utah 2002).

7. **Divorcee failed to meet her burden to effectively oppose MSJ.** Divorcee failed to meet the burden of proof required to adequately oppose Appellees’ MSJ. Instead she merely speculates that if she were allowed to conduct discovery that she might be able to find some disputed issue of fact for trial. The Utah Supreme Court recently ruled that as a minimum, to contest a properly supported MSJ,¹⁷ the opposing party was required:

To successfully defend against a motion for summary judgment, the nonmoving party must set forth facts “sufficient to establish the existence of an element essential to that party's case.” Failure to do so with regard to any of the essential elements of that party's claim will result in a conclusion that the moving party "is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law." "In such a situation, there can be 'no genuine issue as to any material fact,' since a complete failure of proof concerning an essential element of the nonmoving party's case

the time required to complete that discovery, (c) specify the facts they believe the discovery would produce, (d) how it would defeat the pending MSJ. (e) reasons specified must be “adequate” and (f) they must show that the party is not merely on a “fishing expedition” for purely speculative facts.

¹⁷

Anderson Development Co. V. Tobias, 116 p. 3D 323 (Utah June 2005). Citing *Burns v. Cannondale Bicycle Co.*, 876 P.2d 415, 419 (Utah Ct.App.1994) (quoting *Celotex Corp. v. Catrett*, 477 U.S. 317, 323, 106 S.Ct. 2548, 91 L.Ed.2d 265 (1986)).

necessarily renders all other facts immaterial." (quoting Fed.R.Civ.P. 56(c). (Emphasis added).

Divorcee has failed to meet this burden of proof as to the issues discussed in ¶ 7 above.

8. **No disputed material issues have been identified.** Since Divorcee has failed to identify any material issue of fact, a trial would be a useless act. Widow and Plural wife respond to Divorcee's arguments re alleged errors by the trial court (as discussed in sub-paragraph "A") [See P. 12, ¶ "A" of Appellants' 8/22/05 brief] as follows:

A
(P. 12-20)

Court properly applied the law to undisputed facts

9. **Conflicting evidence not weighed.** Contrary to Divorcee's argument (P. 11-12), the SJ decision did not result from weighing conflicting evidence. Even though the Commissioner expressed surprise at some of Divorcee's incredible claims, said matters were not material to her decision. Instead, the MSJ was entirely based on undisputed facts and well settled Utah law. The Commissioner's oral decision included the following [ADD. C, P. 36, lines 11-26:

Looking at all of the facts, the petitioner was married and then subsequently divorced from the decedent, Mr. Kunz, and **she wants that declared now to be a common law marriage, which on its face I have to invalidate the certified copy of the marriage between Lynn and Richard in 1999.** To do that there has to be clear and convincing evidence that that was fraud. I don't have—that is a higher level. It is just under a criminal standard. I don't have that level. It doesn't rise to that level. (Emphasis added).

I can't see that I shouldn't grant the summary judgment because on its face the documents presented, **the evidence presented is there is a valid marriage. There has been a valid marriage since 1999 in this case, and I don't have anything that stands in the way to show that it is not a valid marriage other than conclusionary statements**, which is not the test under a 56(f) matter, and so the motion for summary judgment is granted. (Emphasis added).

In her 11/16/04 Order Judge Peuler denied oral arguments based upon her review of a transcript of Commissioner Bradford's hearing. [Add. B].

10. **Insufficient URCP 56(f) affidavit re discovery.** Morrison filed an insufficient URCP 56(f) Affidavit [R. 65-71] in an attempt to delay the MSJ so as to allow discovery. As discussed above, the Court denied Divorcee's request and ruled that Morrison's affidavit was insufficient to comply with URCP 56(f) requirements. Curiously, Divorcee has not challenged the Court holding that Morrison's URCP 56(f) affidavit was insufficient. Even now, Divorcee has not identified any disputed material issue of fact to be tried. Among other deficiencies, Morrison's affidavit generally discussed potential legal issues, but he failed to identify any specific material evidence expected to be obtained through discovery. [See footnotes #7, 8 and 10, pages 5-8 above].

B - (P. 20-22)

Divorcee's Petition is barred as untimely

11. **Court held that Divorcee claims did not meet statutory requirements.** As a condition precedent to Divorcee obtaining an order validating her relationship with Deceased Husband as a common law marriage under UC § 30-1-4.5 [Add. "A" to App. brief] she must prove that she has met the statutory requirements. Judge Peuler's 11/16/04 ruling [P. 2 in Add. "B" to App. brief] held that Divorcee did not meet those statutory requirements::

The Court reaches this conclusion (affirming Commissioner Bradford's summary judgment of dismissal) based on the fact that **even if the decedent Richard Kunz and petitioner Janice Kunz had a common law marriage, their alleged "union" was never legally defined as such prior to his 1999 marriage to Lynne R. Kunz. See, Utah Code Ann. 30-1-4.5. Additionally, after 1999, Mr. Kunz, did not have the ability to consent to a common law marriage with Janice Kunz because he was legally married to Lynn R. Kunz. (Emphasis added).**

Because Divorcee did not bring her petition during a period while Deceased Husband was capable of entering into a statutory common law marriage, the time with which she was required to file petition is not subject to tolling and is absolutely barred as discussed below and in ¶5 above.

12. **Failure to meet jurisdictional requirements is an absolute bar.** Before Divorcee could obtain a declaration of a valid common law marriage under UC § 30-1-4.5, she must prove that she and the Deceased Husband both met the statutory requirements. Judge Peuler's ruled [Add. "A" to App. brief - quoted in ¶ 8 above] that they did not meet the statutory requirements (a) in UC 30-1-4.5(1)(a) [capable of entering into a common law marriage, etc.] & (b) [after his marriage to Lynne, Richard was not capable of giving consent or entering into a solemnized marriage] and(b) that because their "union" was not declared to be a common law marriage within 1 year after his right to seek such a declaration was lost as a result of his marriage to Lynne, [as required by UC § 30-1-4.5(1)(a) & (b) and UC § 30-1-4.5(1)].

Failure to meet those statutory requirements is an absolute bar to granting Divorcee's petition to declare that a common law marriage resulted from her relationship with Deceased Husband. Unlike a statute of limitation, a statutory jurisdictional limitations period is not an affirmative defense subject to tolling, waiver or estoppel.¹⁸ In addition, a jurisdictional time limitation cannot be modified, and non-compliance with such a limitation is an absolute bar.¹⁹

13. **Statute of repose is an absolute bar.** A statute of repose extinguishes a cause of action after a fixed period of time, regardless of when the cause of action accrued,

¹⁸

Eschbaugh v Industrial Com'n, 677 N. E. 2d 438 (5th Dist. 1996); 51 Am. Jur. 2d *Limitation of Actions* § 30 and authorities there cited.

¹⁹ *Miller v New Jersey State Dept of Corrections*, 145 F. 3d 616 (3d Cir. 1998).

potentially barring a plaintiff's suit before there has been an injury or before the cause of action has arisen.²⁰ UC § 30-1-4.5(2) [Add. "A" to App. brief] is a statute of repose which reads in relevant part as follows:

The determination or establishment of a marriage under this section must occur during the relationship described in Subsection (1), or within one year following the termination of that relationship. . . (Emphasis added).

Divorcee's argument that the time period is subject to tolling under the discovery rule is without merit. As discussed above, a statute of repose cannot be tolled.

14. **Failure to adduce evidence of fraud.** Even if the time within which Divorcee could have filed a petition seeking a declaration that her relationship with Deceased Husband had ripened into a statutory common-law marriage were not barred (it is barred for the reasons discussed above), her Petition must be denied because she has failed to adduce any proof of her claim of a fraudulent concealment of the marriage between Deceased Husband and his Widow. See discussions in ¶ 4, 6, 8 and quotation from Commissioner Bradford's decision where she discusses Divorcee's failure to adduce clear and convincing evidence of fraud in ¶ 9 above.

20

See 51 Am. Jur. 2d *Limitation of Actions* § 31 and 32 and authorities there cited, including citation therein to *Lee v. Gaufin*, 367 P.2d 572 (Utah 1993) as authority. Utah cases which discuss and approve statutes of repose include the following: *Jensen v. IHC*, ¶ 70-77, 82 P.3d 1076; *Day v. Meek*, 976 P.2d 1201, 1204-1206, (Utah 1999).

15. **Divorcee's waiver.** The trial court properly held that by her failure to ask the Court to declare her relationship with Deceased Husband to be a common law marriage during a period of 50 years, that she waived her right to do so [P. 26, lines 17-21 in Add. "C" to Appellant's brief].
16. **Lillie has equal standing as a common-law wife.** Both Lillie and Janice co-habited with Richard and but for his marriage to Lynne either might have qualified to be declared his common-law wife under UC § 30-1-4.5. If there were to be a declaration of a common-law marriage, why shouldn't Lillie instead of Lynne be declared to be Richard's common-law wife? Morrison's argument that the first plural wife should have priority over later plural wives in being declared to be the common-law wife makes little sense. During oral argument Morrison admitted that if Richard's marriage to Lynne was valid, that Janice had no claim: [Add. "C", page 33, lines 1-6].

THE COURT: If it's [1999 marriage between Richard and Lynne] determined to be a valid marriage where does that put your client?

MR. MORRISON: If their marriage is valid then I think we're done.

THE COURT: I think so, too

MR. MORRISON: Yeah.

However, since there was a valid 1999 marriage between Lynne and Richard, after that time Richard had no capacity to have his relationship with either Lille or Lynne declared to be a common law marriage.

II

DIVORCE ENDED DIVORCEE'S MARRIAGE TO DECEASED

HUSBAND

17. **Summary disposition efforts.** Contrary to Divorcee's argument [P. 22-23], Widow and Plural Wife attempts to obtain summary disposition in this matter were and continue to be good faith attempts to demonstrate that this Court lacks jurisdiction, that Divorcee's claims are wholly without merit, etc.
18. **Divorce ended Divorcee's marriage to Deceased Husband.** Divorcee makes the curious argument that because she continued to live with deceased husband after they were divorced, the Court should overlook his later marriages to two women, should ignore his polygamous relationships with other women, should ignore the statutory time and fact limitations on the Court's ability to declare a statutory common-law marriage, for some unexplained reason, and in some undefined manner, Divorcee now asks the Court to declare that she should be judicially recognized as deceased Husband's widow [App. brief P. 23-24; 26-27]. As Commissioner Bradford

observed, Divorcee, is, in effect, asking the Court to give judicial approval to her misconduct:

THE COURT: Okay. So in essence, **it feels like I'm either tacitly approving polygamist relationship** by allow these common law marriages, divorce, marriages, divorces to accumulates so that we don't have to count any of the marriages, we just go back to the first one. **We allow that perpetration of a fraud on the courts and society in favor of the first polygamist wife, disregarding all of the fraud that had been committed since that time, and the tacit approval of the first wife, correct?** (Emphasis added).

Divorcee's ongoing attempt to obtain judicial approval of her misconduct should not be tolerated. The Court should affirm the summary judgment dismissing her petition.

19. **Unsupported accusations should be disregarded.** Without supporting evidence, Divorcee's counsel wildly speculates as to the reasons Deceased Husband and Widow married, and he then asks the court to deny based on his suspicions their marriage might be subject to challenge [P. 24-26]. His speculation is so lacking in merit that it does not require a response, other than to deny his claims.
20. **Request for attorney fees re appeal.** Widow and Plural Wife should be awarded reasonable attorney fees incurred in defending against Divorcee's frivolous appeal.²¹
Among other things, attorney fees should be awarded because the appeal was not

²¹ See ¶ 1 of App. 3.

brought or asserted in good faith and because it is without merit.²² Utah case law also approves the award of attorney fees where, as here, the appeal lacks merit.²³ The

22

RULE 33. DAMAGES FOR DELAY OR FRIVOLOUS APPEAL; RECOVERY OF ATTORNEY'S FEES

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